[]]	Documen Form 4 Land Rep	istration Reform Act			**
	(1) Registry		(2) Page 1 of	. pages	
	(3) Property Identifier(s)	Block 5	Property 76 29660-0535	こくしてり :	Additionat See Schedule
Number YR 884730 CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT	(4) Nature of D BY-LAW No	ocument O. 1 (Condominium Ac	t, 1998)		
CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT	(5) Considerati	on			
SEP 2 1 2006 /2:35	} <u> </u>		Dollars \$	<u>.</u>	
YORK REGION Law Sice	All units and	common elements con Standard Condomini	oprising the proper um Corporation No.	ty incind 1069	ed in
NEWMARKET LandRegistrar					
	ĺ		•		-
New Property Identifiers Addition See	onat;			•	
Sched	uite []				
Executions Addilic See	Contains.	(a)Redescription New Easement		dditional _E	
Schedi This Document provides as follows:	ule 🔠	Plan/Sketch L_i	Description L Pa	arties L	Other X
	\$ 1.15°		•		
ee schedule attached					
			• • •		
	÷				
		•			ļ
					· ·
			•		
		* · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Con	tinued on S	obariula 🗆
This Document retates to instrument number(s)			-1402 0170	
l) Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest) Name(s)			<i>6</i> /		 {
	·	Signature(s)	\	Date of	Signature M . D
ORK REGION STANDARD CONDO DRPORATION NO. 1069)MINIUM	Per: Fresident		2006	09 17
,	**************************************	"I have authority to bis	id the Corporation."		
·············					
				:	
Address for Service				<u> </u>	╙┸┷┤
for Service					
		Signature(s)		Date of	Signature
for Service) Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest)		Signature(s)		Date of	Signature M 0
for Service) Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest)		Signature(s)		Date of	
for Service) Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest)		Signature(s)		Date of	
for Service Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest)		Signature(a)		Date of	
for Service Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest)		Signature(s)		Date of	
for Service) Partylies) (Set out Status or Interest) Name(s) Address for Service				Date of	
Address for Service Municipal Address of Property	(15) Document Prepared		Feasa	Y	
Address for Service Municipal Address of Property	B. Chris Langlotz		Fees a	Y	
Address for Service Municipal Address of Property	B. Chris Langlotz Simpson Wigle LLP Suite 400	by:	Registration Fee	Y	
Address for Service Municipal Address of Property	B. Chris Langlotz Simpson Wigle LLP	by:		Y	

Cocurrent prepared using The Conveyancer

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069

BY-LAW NO. 1

CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1998

CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT OF A BY-LAW (under subsection 56 (9) of the Condominium Act, 1998)

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069, (known as the "Corporation") certifies that:

- 1. The copy of By-law Number 1, attached as schedule A, is a true copy of the By-law.
- The By-law was made in accordance with the Condominium Act 1998.
- The owners of a majority of the units of the Corporation have voted in favour of confirming the By-law.

YORK REGION STANDARD
CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069

Enrico Lisi, President

c/s

Frank of Girolamo, Secretary

"We have authority to bind the Corporation."

BY-LAW NO. 1

Be it enacted as a By-Law of YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069 (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") as follows:

ARTICLE I

- The following terms used herein and in the By-laws of the Condominium Corporation have the meanings set out below, unless the context otherwise requires:
 - a) "auditor" means a person licensed as a public accountant under The Public Accountancy Act of Onterio;
 - b) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Corporation;
 - c) "common elements" means all the property except the units;
 - d) "common expenses" means the expenses of the performance of the objects and duties of the Corporation and any expenses specified as common expenses in the Act or in the Declaration of the Corporation.
 - e) "common interest" means the interest in the common elements appurtenant to a unit;
 - "common surplus" means the excess of all receipts of the Corporation over expenses;
 - g) "Corporation" means the Condominium Corporation created under the Act by registration of the Declaration and the Description;
 - "encumbrance" means a claim that secures the payment of money or the performance of any other obligation and includes a Mortgage and a Lien;
 - "owner" means the owner or owners of the freehold estate or estates in a unit and common interest, but does not include a mortgagee unless in possession;
 - j) "owner occupant" means the owner of an owner-occupied unit as defined by
 s. 51 (5) of the Act;
 - k) "property" means the land and interests appurtenant to the land described in the Description and Schedule "A" of the Declaration, and includes any land and interests appurtenant to lands that are added to the common elements;

- "records" shall include those items enumerated in Section 55 of the Act and financial records prepared on behalf of the Corporation, Minutes of owners' meetings and Board meetings, as well as any amendments to the Declaration, By-Laws and Rules of the Corporation;
- m) "reserve fund" means a fund set up by the Corporation in a special account for major repair and replacement of common elements and assets of the Corporation including, where applicable, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, roads, sidewalks, sewers and parking facilities;
- "unit" includes dwelling units, as referred to herein and means a part or parts of the land included in the Description and designated as a unit by the Description, and comprises the space enclosed by its boundaries and all the material parts of the land within this space at the time the Declaration and Description are registered;
- Other terms used herein shall have ascribed to them the definitions contained in the Condominium Act of Ontario as amended from time to time, referred to as the "Act" in this By-law.

ARTICLE II SEAI

The Corporate seal of the Corporation shall be in the form impressed herein.

(Seal)

ARTICLE III REGISTER

The Corporation shall keep a record (hereinafter called the "register") respecting the property which shall note the name and address of the owner and mortgagee of each unit who have notified the Corporation of an entitlement to vote. The address of each owner shall be the unit address and the address of each mortgagee shall be the address shown on the mortgage or charge registered in the Land Titles Division for the Registry Office of Wentworth (No. 62), Ontario, unless the Corporation is given notice in writing of a different address by such owner or mortgagee.

ARTICLE IV MEETINGS OF OWNERS

a. Annual Meeting:

1.

- i. The annual meeting of the Owners shall be held at such place within the Regional Municipality of Hamilton-Wentworth at such time and on such day in each year as the Board may from time to time determine, for the purpose of hearing and receiving the reports and statements required by the Act, the Declaration and the By-laws of the Corporation, to be read at or laid down before the owners at an annual meeting; electing directors; appointing the auditor; and for the transaction of such other matters relevant to the affairs and business of the Corporation.
- ii. The first annual general meeting shall be held within three (3) months of the date of registration of the Declaration and Description. Thereafter the annual general meeting shall be held within six (6) months of the end of each fiscal year of the corporation.

b. <u>Turnover Meeting:</u>

- i. The Board, elected at a time when the Declarant owns a majority of the units shall, not more than twenty-one (21) days after the Declarant ceases to be the registered owner of a majority of the units, call a meeting of the owners to elect a new Board, and such meeting shall be held within twenty-one (21) days after the calling of the meeting (hereinafter called the "Turnover Meeting").
- If the Turnover Meeting is not called within such time, any owner or any mortgagee entitled to vote may call the meeting.
- iii. At the Turnover Meeting, the Declarant or its agents shall give to the new Board elected at that meeting the condominium seal and all the books, documents, agreements, plans, warranties, financial records and all other information required to be transferred pursuant to s.43 (4) of the Act. The Declarant shall deliver to the Board of Directors of the Corporation within thirty, (30) days after the Turnover Meeting those items listed in s. 47 (5) of the Act. Furthermore, within sixty (60) days after the Turnover Meeting, the Declarant shall give the Board an audited financial statement prepared as at the last day of the month within which the Turnover Meeting was held.

INDOM/DODSHSUNISITERRACES ON THE GREENBYLAW 1 FINAL DOC

iv. At such Turnover Meeting, the Declarant or its Proxy may cast such votes as the Declarant may be entitled to by reason of it being the owner or mortgagee of any unit, and any question properly brought before the meeting including, the election of Directors.

c. Special Meeting:

- i. The Board or any mortgagee holding mortgages on not less than fifteen per cent (15%) of the units may at any time call a special meeting of the owners of the Corporation for the transaction of any business, the nature of which shall be specified in the notice calling the meeting.
- ii. Such meeting shall be held at such time and at such place within the said Regional Municipality of Hamilton-Wentworth as may be determined by the Board.

d. Requisitioned Meeting

- i. The Board shall also call and hold a special meeting of the owners upon receipt of a requisition in writing to the Board stating the nature of the business to be presented at the meeting and signed by the requisitionists and delivered personally or mailed by registered mail to the President or Secretary of the Corporation or deposited at the address for service of the Corporation within thirty-five (35) days of receipt of such notice.
- ii. The requisition must be signed by owners of the Corporation who together own at least fifteen per cent (15%) of the units and who are listed in the register of the corporation and are entitled to vote.
- iii. The notice calling the meeting shall state the nature of the business to be presented at the meeting as requisitioned by the owners and include a copy of the requisition. If the nature of the business to be presented at the meeting includes the removal of one or more directors the requisition shall state the name of each director who is proposed to be removed, the reasons why that director is to be removed and whether that director occupies the position on the board reserved for voting by owner-occupants.
- iv. If the requisitionist's request it in the requisition or consent in writing after the requisition has been made, the business to be presented at the meeting shall be added to the agenda of the next annual general meeting of the owners.

v. If the Board does not, within thirty-five (35) days after receipt of such requisition call and hold such meeting, any of the requisitionists may call such meeting which shall be held within forty-five (45) days of the day the meeting is called.

2. Notices:

- a. Notice of the date, hour, place of, and nature of the business to be presented for each annual, requisitioned or special meeting shall be given in accordance with Article X at least fifteen (15) days before the day on which the meeting is to be held to the auditor of the Corporation, and to each owner and mortgagee whose name and address for service is entered in the Corporation's register as of the twentieth, (20th) day prior to the day of the meeting.
- b. A notice of meeting as hereinbefore required shall have appended to it an agenda of matters to be considered at such meeting and no vote may be taken, motion made or consent or approval given in respect of any matter that is not included in the agenda for such meeting. The notice shall also include a copy of all proposed changes to the declaration, by-laws rules or agreements that are to be discussed at the meeting.
- c. The Notice given for the annual general meeting shall contain a copy of the Financial Statements for the Corporation approved by the Board in accordance with the Act and a copy of the Auditor's Report.
- 3. Persons Entitled to be Present: The only persons entitled to attend a meeting of owners shall be the owners and mortgagees whose names and address for service were entered on the register for the corporation as of the twentieth, (20th) day prior to the date of the meeting and are entitled to vote, their proxies, the auditor, and others who, although not entitled to vote, are entitled or required under the provisions of the Act or the Declaration and By-laws of the Corporation to be present at the meeting. Any other person may be admitted only on the invitation of the Chairperson of the meeting or with the consent of the meeting.

Quorum:

a. At any meeting of owners, a quorum shall be constituted when persons entitled to vote and owning not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the units are present in person, or represented by proxy, at such meeting. b. To be counted towards the quorum of a meeting an owner must have been entitled to receive notice of the meeting, be entitled to vote at the meeting and be present in person or by proxy.

Right to Vote:

- a. At each meeting of owners, every owner shall be entitled to vote who is entered on the register as an owner of a dwelling unit subject to paragraph 3 of this Article.
- b. If a unit has been mortgaged, the owner of the unit (or proxy) may vote in respect of it unless, under the terms of the mortgage, the mortgagee was expressly authorized to vote in the place of the unit owner, the mortgagee is otherwise entitled to vote and the mortgagee has notified the Corporation and the owner of its intention to exercise such right at least four (4) days before the date specified in the notice of the meeting in which case such mortgagee (or proxy) may attend meetings and vote in respect of such unit, upon filing with the Secretary of the meeting sufficient proof of the terms of such instrument and notice to the owner. Any dispute over the right to vote shall be resolved by the Chairperson of the meeting upon such evidence as may be deemed sufficient.
- c. At any meeting of the owners, every owner or mortgagee shall have the right to cast one (1) vote for each such unit registered in the name of the owner, provided that if a unit or a mortgage on a unit is owned by two persons, both of them must agree, or where the unit or mortgage is owned by more than two persons, a majority must agree, as to the manner in which the vote applicable to their unit is to be cast, otherwise the vote in respect of that unit shall not be counted.

Loss of right to vote:

- a. An owner or mortgagee of a unit is not entitled to vote at any meeting if any contributions payable in respect of the unit have been in arrears for thirty (30) days or more at the time of the meeting. The owner or mortgagee of a unit that is in arrears of the contributions payable in respect of the unit may tender payment in full, together with interest as set out in this By-Law and such other reasonable costs as the Corporation may be entitled to in respect of such arrears, at any time prior to the commencement of such meeting provided that such payment shall be in cash or by certified cheque or bank draft payable to the Corporation and dated on or before the same date as the meeting provided that the Chairperson of the meeting shall have the right, exercising absolute discretion, to allow payment of such arrears by ordinary cheque.
- b. An owner or mortgagee shall not be entitled to vote at a meeting if the owner or mortgagee was not entitled to receive notice of the meeting in accordance with the Act and this By-law.

Conduct of Meetings:

- a. At any general or special meeting, the president of the Corporation, or failing the president, the vice-president, or failing the vice-president some person elected at the meeting, shall act as Chairperson of the meeting, and the secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of the meeting or, failing the secretary, the Chairperson shall appoint a Secretary of the meeting.
- b. Unless the Act, the Declaration or the By-Laws of the Corporation provide otherwise, any question as to: the calling of the meeting; the right to vote at a meeting; the validity of proxies presented at the meeting; the method used or the validity of any vote held at a meeting; or the rules of order for a meeting shall be decided by the Chairperson.
- c. In rendering a decision, the Chairperson may make reference to Nathan's <u>Wainberg's Company Meetings including Rules of Order</u> and/or Nathan's <u>Wainberg's Society Meeting including Rules of Order</u>, (both published by CCH Canadian Limited, North York, Ontario) for assistance in determining any question or procedure as to the Rules of Order for a meeting.
- 8. Method of Voting General Matters: Any question raised at a general, special, requisitioned or Turnover Meeting shall be decided by a show of hands unless a recorded vote is required by the Chairperson of the meeting or is demanded by an owner or mortgagee present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote either before or promptly after the vote, and unless a recorded vote is so required or demanded, a declaration by the Chairperson of the meeting that the vote upon the question has been carried, or carried by a particular majority, or not carried, is prima facie proof of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of votes recorded in favour of or against such question.

Method of Voting – For Directors:

- a. If the number of candidates nominated for the position of Director is equal to the number of positions available at a meeting, and nominations have been properly closed, the Chairperson may declare that the candidates so nominated shall be elected to the office directly by acclamation.
- b. If there are more candidates nominated for the position of Director than there are vacancies to be filled at any meeting, the vote for the election of Directors shall be made by ballot and by proxy only in the following manner:
 - a ballot shall be given to every owner or mortgagee present in person and entitled to vote which ballot may either be a blank paper or paper containing the names of the persons nominated;
 - ii. if it is a blank ballot, those persons entitled to vote shall write the names of the candidates of their choice on the paper or if it is a printed ballot, they shall mark an "x" or check mark opposite the candidates of their choice. If it is a blank ballot, the persons entitled

- to vote shall not write the name of a candidate on such baflot more than once;
- iii. if a valid proxy is submitted for the election of directors it shall, in accordance with the Act, include the name of the candidate(s) that the donor of the proxy wishes to vote for and such proxies shall be counted in the election of the directors in the same fashion as a ballot and the proxy holder shall not receive a ballot for the election of directors in respect of such proxy;
- iv. if a valid proxy is submitted at a meeting where directors are to be elected but does not contain the names any of the candidates it may not be used for the election of any director, including those that may be nominated from the floor, but the proxy holder will be entitled to exercise the right to vote for each proxy he or she holds for other matters listed in the agenda or otherwise properly brought before the meeting.
- v. if a meeting is held at which the position on the board that is reserved for a director that is to be elected only by the owner-occupants, (the "owner-occupant board position"), then only the owner-occupants may vote for that position using a ballot that includes a statement on it indicating that it is to be used for the election of the owner-occupant board position or by a valid proxy that conforms with the procedures noted above and clearly identifies the candidate for the owner-occupant board position that the donor of the proxy wishes to vote for.
- vi. at the first meeting of owners at which the board of directors is to be elected or at a meeting where, due to a vacancy on the board two or more positions on the board must be filled an individual may stand for election for both the owner-occupant position on the board and that of a regular board position. If an election is to take place for both positions, the election for the owner occupant position must take place first. Anyone who has stated an intention to stand for election for both positions and given notice as required by subsection 28 (2) and (3) of the Act and who is elected to fill the owner-occupant position on the board is deemed to have withdrawn his or her candidacy for the regular Board position(s). However, if the said individual is not elected to the owner-occupant position on the board, such individual may then be considered for the regular position(s) available on the Board to be elected following the election for the owner-occupant position on the board.
- vii. if a meeting is called at which vote is to be held to remove a director or directors prior to the end of their term the level of vote required to remove such director(s) shall be those owners who represent a majority of all of the units in the corporation and proxies submitted for such meetings must include the name of the director(s) that the donor of the proxy wishes to vote to remove and the names of those

candidates that the proxy donor wishes to vote to elect to fill any vacant positions that arise because of the removal of a director. If a director to be removed is one that holds the owner-occupant position on the Board the proxy donor must also indicate on the proxy the name of the candidate they wish to vote to elect to that position should it become vacant due to the removal of a director.

- Scrutineers: the Chairperson may appoint scrutineers to assist in collecting, examining and counting the ballots but only the Chairperson may rule on the validity of a ballot or proxy.
- 11. Representatives: A committee of a mentally incompetent owner or mortgagee, an estate trustee, attorney, guardian or trustee of an owner or mortgagee and, where a corporation acts in such capacity, any person duly appointed by proxy for such corporation, upon filing with the Secretary of the meeting sufficient proof of such appointment, may represent the owner or mortgagee at a meeting of the owners of the Corporation, and may vote in the same manner and to the same extent as an owner or mortgagee. If there be more than one estate trustee, committee, attorney, guardian or trustee, the provisions of paragraphs 5 and 6 of this Article shall apply.

12. Proxies:

- a. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing, dated, identify the particular meeting for which it is to be used and be signed by the owner or mortgagee or its attorney authorized in writing. A photocopy or facsimile copy of a proxy that is otherwise valid and is legible shall be accepted.
- The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited with the Secretary of the meeting prior to the commencement of the meeting.
- c. Proxies used at meetings where directors are to be removed and/or elected shall also conform with the requirements of the Act and this Article.
- d. Any question as to the validity of a proxy shall be decided by the Chairperson
 of the meeting.
- Proxies submitted for a meeting of the owners shall be retained by the Corporation as a record for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of the meeting.
- 13. <u>Votes to Govern</u>: At all meetings of owners every question shall, unless otherwise required by the Act, Declaration or By-laws, be decided by a majority of the votes duly cast on the question by those owners who are present, in person or by proxy, at the meeting.
- 14. Adjournment of Meeting: The Chairperson at a meeting of owners may, with the consent of the meeting and subject to such conditions as the meeting may decide, adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place, provided that the calling and holding of such meeting shall be governed by the Act and this By-law.

ARTICLE V THE CORPORATION

- <u>Duties of the Corporation</u>: The duties of the Corporation shall include but shall not be limited to the following:
 - a. controlling, managing and administering the common elements and the assets of the Corporation;
 - b. collecting the common element charges from the owners;
 - c. arranging for the supply of natural gas, hydro, and water to the building and common elements except where the Corporation is prevented from carrying out such duty by reason of any event beyond the reasonable control of the Corporation. If any apparatus or equipment used in effecting the supply of natural gas, hydro or water at any time becomes incapable of fulfilling its function or is damaged or destroyed, the Corporation shall have a reasonable time within which to repair or replace such apparatus and the Corporation shall not be liable for indirect or consequential damages or for damages for personal discomfort or illness by reason of the breach of such duty;
 - d. obtaining and maintaining insurance for the property as may be required by the Act, Declaration and By-laws;
 - e. repairing and restoring of the common elements in accordance with the provisions of the Act, Declaration and By-laws;
 - f. obtaining and maintaining fidelity bonds when it is considered appropriate to do so by the Board, in such amounts as the Board may deem reasonable, for such officers and directors or employees as are authorized to receive or disburse any funds on behalf of the Corporation;
 - g. causing audits to be made after every year end and making auditors' reports.
 and financial statements available to the owners and mortgagees;
 - h. preparation of an estimated budget in accordance with Article XI hereof;
 - keeping accurate accounts and sending to each unit owner an annual statement of income and expenditures in respect thereto and keeping such accounts open for inspection by unit owners, or any of them;
 - effecting compliance with the Act, the Declaration, the By-laws, and the Rules from time to time:
 - k. maintaining a register of the owners and mortgagees in accordance with the Act and Article III hereof;
 - keeping accurate records;
 - m. establishing and maintaining one or more reserve funds and obtaining a Comprehensive Reserve Fund Study or update of it in accordance with the Act;
- Powers of the Corporation: The Powers of the Corporation shall include but shall not be limited to the following:

- employment and dismissal of personnel necessary for the maintenance and operation of the common elements;
- adoption, amendment and repeal of Rules concerning the operation and use of the property;
- employing a manager at a compensation to be determined by the Board to perform such duties and services as the Board shall authorize;
- d. obtaining and maintaining fidelity bonds for any manager where deemed necessary by the Board, and in such a manner as the Board may deem reasonable;
- investing reserves held by the Corporation, provided that such investment shall be permitted by s.115 of the Act, and amendments thereto, and convertible into cash within ninety (90) days;
- f. settling, adjusting, compromising or referring to mediation, arbitration or the courts any dispute, claim or claims which may be made upon or on behalf of the Corporation;
- g. borrowing such amounts as in its discretion are necessary or desirable in order to protect, maintain, preserve or insure the due and continued operation of the property in accordance with the Declaration and By-laws of the Corporation, and securing any such loan by mortgage, piedge or charge of any asset owned by the Corporation, and adding the repayment of such loan to common expenses, subject to the passage of a by-law authorizing each such borrowing for expenditures that are not listed in the annual budget for the corporation;
- retaining and holding any securities or other property, whether real or personal, which shall be received by the Corporation, whether or not the same is authorized by any law, present or future, for the investment of trust funds;
- i. selling, conveying, exchanging, assigning or otherwise dealing with any real or personal property at any time owned by the Corporation at such price, on such terms, and in such manner as the Corporation in its sole discretion deems advisable and doing all things and executing all documents required to give effect to the foregoing;
- j. leasing any part or parts of the common elements and granting or transferring an easement or licence through the common elements subject to the passing of a by-law for such lease, easement or licence.
- k. to object and/or appeal assessments under the Assessments Act on behalf
 of owners in respect of their units in accordance with Article XIX.

ARTICLE VI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 Business: The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors.

Quorum:

- a. Until changed by a by-law, the number of directors shall be five (5) of whom three (3) shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board. Notwithstanding vacancies, the remaining directors may exercise all the powers of the Board so long as a quorum of the Board remains in office.
- b. If a Director is absent from a meeting, such Director may for the purposes of constituting a quorum and for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, be deemed to be present and the Board shall be properly constituted if such Director participates in the meeting by teleconference or other telecommunications system to communicate with all other Board members present during such meeting simultaneously and instantaneously at all times throughout the meeting and the other directors have agreed to such method of participation.
- Qualifications: Each director shall be eighteen (18) or more years of age, need not be an owner and must not have a certificate of lien registered against a unit owned by him or her as of the date of the meeting at which he or she stands for election to the board of directors and no undischarged bankrupt or mentally incompetent person shall be a director. If a director becomes a bankrupt or a mentally incompetent person, or if a certificate of lien is registered against a unit owned by him or her and such lien has not been discharged from the director's unit within ninety, (90) days from the date of its registration, their term as a director shall cease.
- 4. <u>Election and Term</u>: The first directors of the Corporation shall be elected by the Declarant as owner of all the units. The first director shall be elected for a term to expire upon an election at a Turnover Meeting or such earlier election as may be required by the Act.

At the Turnover Meeting the owners shall elect five directors. Two elections shall be held. The first election shall be for the position of the Owner Occupant Director. The Owner Occupant Director shall be elected for a term of three (3) years. The remaining positions shall be filled by election of four (4) directors with the two directors receiving the most votes to hold office for a term of two (2) years and the two directors receiving the fewest votes to serve for one (1) year. In the event of acclamation or tie vote, the directors shall decide amongst themselves who shall fill each term. At each annual meeting thereafter the number of directors equal to the number of directors retiring in such year shall be elected for a term of three years. In subsequent elections where there are, for any reason more then one vacancy on the board to be filled the candidate receiving the highest number of votes shall fill the vacancy on the Board which has the longest term, unless one of the positions is that of the Owner Occupant Director in which event the Director so elected shall

complete the term of the existing Owner Occupant Director or if the term of the Owner Occupant Director has expired then for three (3) years.

- 5. Removal of Directors: A director may be removed before the expiration of the director's term by a vote of owners who together own a majority of all of the units in the Corporation. The owners may elect any person qualified to be a member of the Board under the Declaration or By-laws for the remainder of the term of the director removed, (also see Article IV regarding requisitioned meetings and proxies).
- 6. <u>Filling of Vacancies</u>: If a vacancy in the membership of the Board occurs, the majority of the remaining members of the Board may appoint any person qualified to be a member of the Board under the Declaration or By-laws to fill the vacancy until the next annual meeting at which time the vacancy shall be filled by election by the owners.
- 7. Calling of Meetings: Meetings of the Board shall be held from time to time at such place and at such time and on such day as any three directors may determine, and the Secretary shall call meetings when directly authorized by such three directors. Notice of any meeting so called shall be given personally, by ordinary mail, by courier delivery, or electronic communication, (e.g. fax or e-mail) to each director addressed to the director's latest address entered on the register of the Corporation not less than forty-eight (48) hours (excluding any part of a Sunday or of a holiday as defined by The Interpretation Act of Canada for the time being in force) before the time when the meeting is to be held, save that no notice of a meeting shall be necessary if all the directors are present and consent to the holding of such meeting, or if those absent have waived notice of or otherwise signified in writing their consent to the holding of such meeting.
- 8. Regular Meetings: The Board may appoint a day or days in any month or months for regular meetings at a place and hour to be named. A copy of any resolution of the Board fixing a place and time of regular meetings of the Board shall be given personally or by ordinary mail to each director forthwith after being passed, but no other notice or agenda shall be required for any such regular meeting.
- 9. <u>First Meeting of New Board</u>: The Board may without notice hold its first meeting for the purpose of organization and the election and appointment of officers immediately following the meeting of members at which the directors of such Board were elected, provided a quorum of directors be present.
- 10. Interest of Directors in Contracts: No director shall be disqualified by their office from contracting with the Corporation, nor shall any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Corporation with any director or any firm or corporation in which any director is in any way interested be avoided, nor shall any director so contracting or being so interested be liable to account to the Corporation for any

profit realized by any such contract or arrangement by reason of such director holding such office or of the fiduciary relationship thereby established provided that the provisions of paragraph 11 of this Article VI are complied with.

- 11. Declaration of Interest: It shall be the duty of every director of the Corporation who has, in any way, either directly or indirectly, a material interest in a contract or transaction to which the Corporation is or is to be party to declare such interest at a meeting of the directors of the Corporation in accordance with Section 40 of the Act, as amended, and to refrain from voting in respect thereto and such director shall not in respect of such contract or transaction be counted in the quorum of the Board.
- 12. <u>Standards of Care of Directors</u>: Every director of the Corporation shall exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the office honestly and in good faith and shall exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in similar circumstances.
- 13. <u>Indemnity of Directors and Officers</u>: Subject to Section 38 of the Act, as amended, every director or officer of the Corporation and their heirs, estate trustee(s) and estate respectively shall from time to time and at all times be indemnified and saved harmless from and against:
 - a. any liability and all costs, charges and expenses whatsoever which such director or officer sustains or incurs in respect of any action, suit or proceeding that is proposed or is brought, commenced or prosecuted against the director or officer for or in respect of anything done or permitted by the director or officer in or about the execution of the duties of the director's or officer's office; and
 - all other costs, charges and expenses which the director or officer sustains or incurs in or about or in relation to the affairs thereof;

except where such director or officer has been held by a court of competent jurisdiction to have breached the duty to act honestly and in good faith.

- 14. <u>Directors and Officers Insurance</u>: If the insurance is reasonably available, the Corporation shall purchase and maintain insurance for the benefit of the directors and officers against the matters described in section 38 (1) (a) and (b) of the Act and paragraph 13 of this Article VI.
- 15. <u>Compensation</u>: The directors shall receive such compensation as may from time to time be decided by by-law provided that the by-law shall fix the compensation and state the period, not to exceed three, (3) years for which it is to be paid.

ARTICLE VII OFFICERS

- 1. <u>Elected Officers</u>: At the first meeting of the Board after each election of directors, the Board shall elect from among its members a President. In default of such election the then incumbent, if a member of the Board, shall hold office until a successor is elected. A vacancy occurring from time to time in such office may be filled by the Board from among its members.
- 2. Appointed Officers: From time to time the Board shall appoint a Secretary and may appoint one or more Vice-Presidents, a Treasurer and such other officers as the Board may determine, including one or more assistants to any of the officers so appointed. The officer so appointed may, but need not, be a member of the Board. One person may hold more than one office, and if the same person holds both the office of Secretary and the office of Treasurer, their title shall be Secretary-Treasurer.
- Term of Office: In the absence of written agreement to the contrary, the Board may remove at its pleasure any officer of the Corporation.
- 4. <u>President</u>: The President shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the owners and of the Board, and shall be charged with the general supervision of the business and affairs of the Corporation.
- <u>Vice-President</u>: During the absence of the President, the duties of that office may be performed and powers may be exercised by the Vice-President, or if there are more than one, by the Vice-Presidents, in order of seniority (as determined by the Board) save that no Vice-President shall preside at a meeting of the Board or at a meeting of owners who is not qualified to attend the meeting as director or owner, as the case may be. If a Vice-President exercises any such duty or power, the absence of the President shall be presumed with reference thereto. A Vice-President shall also perform such duties and exercise such powers as the Board may prescribe.

Secretary: The Secretary shall:

- a. give or cause to be given all notices required to be given to the owners, directors, auditors, mortgagees and all others entitled thereto;
- attend all meetings of the directors and of the owners and shall enter or cause to be entered in books kept for that purpose minutes of all proceedings at such meetings;
- be the custodian of all books, papers, records, documents and other instruments belonging to the Corporation;
- d. perform such other duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board.

- Treasurer: The Treasurer shall:
 - a. keep or cause to be kept complete and accurate books of account in which shall be recorded all receipts and disbursements of the Corporation;
 - b. under the direction of the Board, control the deposit of money, the safekeeping of securities and the disbursement of the funds of the Corporation;
 - render to the Board at the meeting thereof, or whenever required of him, an
 account of all transactions as Treasurer, and of the financial position of the
 Corporation.
- 8. Other Officers: The duties of all other officers of the Corporation shall be such as the terms of their engagement call for, or the Board requires of them. Any of the powers and duties of an officer to whom an assistant has been appointed may be exercised and performed by such assistant unless the Board otherwise directs.
- 9. Agents and Attorneys: The Board shall have power from time to time to appoint agents or attorneys for the Corporation with such powers of management or otherwise (including the power to sub-delegate) as may be thought fit.
- 10. Standards of Care of Officers: Every officer of the Corporation shall exercise the powers and discharge their duties honestly and in good faith and shall exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in similar circumstances.

ARTICLE VIII BANKING ARRANGEMENTS & CONTRACTS

Banking Arrangements: The banking business of the Corporation or any part thereof shall be transacted with such bank, trust company or credit union as the Board may designate, appoint or authorize from time to time by resolution, and all such banking business, or any part thereof, shall be transacted on the Corporation's behalf by such one or more officers or other persons as the Board may designate, direct or authorize from time to time by resolution and, to the extent therein provided, including, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the operation of the Corporation's accounts, the making, signing, drawing, accepting, endorsing, negotiating, lodging, depositing or transferring of any cheques, promissory notes, drafts, acceptances, bills of exchange and orders relating to any property of the Corporation; the execution of any agreement relating to any such banking business and defining the rights and powers of the parties thereto; and the authorizing of any officer of such bank to do any act or thing on the Corporation's behalf to facilitate such banking business.

Execution of Instruments: Deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts and obligations on behalf of the Corporation may be signed by the President or a Vice-President together with the Secretary or any other director. Any contract or obligation within the scope of any Management Agreement entered into by the Corporation may be executed on behalf of the Corporation in accordance with the provisions of such Management Agreement. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained in the By-laws of the Corporation, the Board may at any time and from time to time direct the manner in which, and the person or persons by whom, any particular deed, transfer, contract or obligation or any class of deeds, transfers, contracts or obligations of the Corporation may or shall be signed.

3. Execution of Status Certificates Under Section 76 of The Act:

Certificates provided pursuant to Subsection 8 of Section 32 of the Act, as amended, may be signed by any officer or any director of the Corporation provided that the Board may by resolution at any time and from time to time direct the manner in which, and the person by whom, such certificates may or shall be signed.

4. Borrowing:

The Corporation is hereby authorized, at such time as the Board may determine, to enter into an overdraft agreement, line of credit or other credit facility in an amount that shall not exceed Forty-Five Thousand Three Hundred Dollars (\$45,300.00) with such lending institution and on such terms and conditions as the Board, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate. Such borrowing facility may at the discretion of this Board be used only for funding unexpected common expenditures not anticipated by, or not adequately provided for in, the operating budget for the corporation on a temporary basis. Such moneys that are borrowed under this facility shall be repaid in full prior to the fiscal year end of the corporation within which they were borrowed failing which the principal amount then outstanding shall be incorporated into the next fiscal year's budget as a separate item and the common expenses shall be increased by whatever amount is necessary to repay such moneys in full within the first quarter of the that fiscal year.

ARTICLE IX REPORTS & RECORDS

- Until otherwise ordered by the Board, the financial year of the Corporation shall end on the 31st day of December in each year, or on such other day as the Board by resolution may determine.
- 2. The Corporation shall, at such regular intervals, as the Board may from time to time decide, but not less frequently than annually, forward to each owner a full and complete statement of the receipts and expenditures of common expenses and a balance sheet with respect to the common expenses and similar statements with respect to the reserve fund. All such statements are referred to in this By-law No. 1

as regular periodic statements. The Corporation shall, furnish, without charge, upon being requested to do so, but not more than once in each calendar year, to the holder of a mortgage on a unit, a copy of the most current regular periodic statements, and shall furnish copies of any additional regular periodic statements requested, upon payment of a reasonable charge therefor, as the Board may from time to time establish.

- 3. Every owner of a unit, upon becoming an owner, shall, on request, be furnished by the Corporation, upon payment of a reasonable charge therefor as the Board may from time to time establish, with a copy of the Declaration, By-laws, and Rules, and all amendments thereto, of the Corporation. Additional copies of the Declaration, By-laws, and Rules, as amended, shall be furnished by the Corporation to any owner upon payment of such reasonable charge therefor as the Board may from time to time establish.
- 4. Owners are entitled to review the corporation's record's subject to the restrictions imposed by section 55 (4) the Act. Owners shall submit a written request to the corporation for access to the records indicating what records they wish to review and the reason for reviewing such records. Such request must be delivered to the corporation at its address for service at least forty-eight, (48) hours, (not including weekends or statutory holidays) in advance of the date on which the owner wishes to review the records. The time during which the records will be available for review will be between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m on any day except weekends and statutory holidays unless otherwise agreed to by the Board. Owners must attend at the location where the records are typically stored to review them unless the Board agrees otherwise. The Corporation shall within a reasonable period of time, provide copies of the records that the owner has examined, if the owner requests them and has paid a reasonable fee to compensate the Corporation for the labour and copying charges incurred to make the copies.

ARTICLE X NOTICE

Method of Giving Notice by the Corporation: Any notice, communication or other document, including notices of assessments required to be given or delivered by the Corporation, shall be sufficiently given if delivered personally to the person to whom it is to be given, or if mailed by prepaid mail in a sealed envelope addressed to such person at the address noted in the register. Any notice, communication or other document to be given by the Corporation to any other person entitled to notice and who is not an owner shall be given to such person in the manner aforesaid to the address shown on the register. Such notice, communication or document shall be deemed to have been given when it is delivered personally or mailed to the address aforesaid. Provided that a notice, communication or document so mailed shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in a post office or public letter box.

- 2. Notice to the Board or Corporation: Any notice, communication or other document to be given to the Board or the Corporation shall be sufficiently given if mailed by prepaid mail in a sealed envelope addressed to it at the address for service of the Corporation set out in the Declaration, or as changed in accordance with the requirements of the Act. Any notice, communication or document so mailed shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in a post office or public letter box provided that a requisition for an owner's meeting may be delivered in the manner described in Article IV.
- 3. Omissions and Errors: The accidental omission to give any notice to anyone entitled thereto or the non-receipt of such notice or any error in any notice not affecting the substance thereof shall not invalidate any action taken at any meeting held pursuant to such notice or otherwise founded thereon.

ARTICLE XI ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF COMMON EXPENSES

Duties of the Board;

- a. All expenses, charges and costs of maintenance or replacement of the common elements and other expenses, charges or costs which the Corporation may incur or expend pursuant hereto shall be assessed by the Board and levied as a monthly common expense or as an extraordinary expenditure against the owners in the proportions in which they are required to contribute to the common expenses as set forth in the Declaration.
- b. The Board shall at least thirty (30) days prior to each financial year end, prepare a budget for the property and determine by estimate the amount of common expenses for the next ensuing fiscal year, or remainder of the current fiscal year, as the case may be. The Board shall allocate and assess such common expenses as set out in the budget for such period among the owners, according to the proportion in which they are required to contribute to the common expenses as set forth in the Declaration. In addition, the Board shall provide in the annual budget a reserve fund in accordance with the Act which reserve fund shall be an asset of the Corporation. The Board shall advise all owners promptly in writing of the amount of common expenses payable by each of them respectively determined as aforesaid, and shall deliver or mail by prepaid mail copies of each budget on which such common expenses are based to all owners entered on the register, and to all mortgagees entered on the register provided that such mortgagees have delivered to the Board a requisition, in writing, requesting a copy of each budget of the Corporation.
- c. Extraordinary expenditures not contemplated in the foregoing budget and for which the Board shall not have sufficient funds may be assessed, at any time during the year in addition to the annual assessment, by the Board serving

notice of such further assessment on all owners which shall include a written statement setting out the reasons for the extraordinary assessment, and such extraordinary assessment shall be payable by each owner within ten (10) days after notice thereof has been given or delivered to such owner, or within such further period of time and in such instalments as the Board may

determine, as an additional common expense and which is enforceable as such.

d. Any payment tendered to the Corporation by an owner or mortgagee for monthly common expenses or extraordinary expenditures shall, where default has been made in the obligation to contribute the common expenses or extraordinary expenses for a unit to the Corporation has previously been made, be applied firstly, to interest; secondly, to late payment charges; thirdly, to costs, legal fees, expenses and disbursements incurred by the Corporation in enforcing payment; and fourthly, towards the most aged common expenses or extraordinary expenditures as may be owing to the Corporation for the unit but nothing in this provision shall preclude the Corporations rights under Article XI to enforce payment of any outstanding common expense contributions or extraordinary expenditures at any time.

Owner's Obligations:

- a. Each owner shall be obliged to pay to the Corporation, or as it may direct, the amount of the common expenses assessed for their unit in equal monthly payments on the first day of each and every month next following delivery of such assessment until such time as a new assessment shall have been delivered to such owner.
- b. Each owner shall deliver to the Corporation postdated cheques for the equal monthly payments, prior to the commencement of each fiscal year of the Corporation or as the Board may direct from time to time or, at the request of the Corporation, enter into such Pre-Authorized Payment Plan for automatic withdrawal of such monthly payments as the Corporation may implement from time to time.
- 3. Conveyance of Unit: No owner shall be liable for the payment of any part of the common expenses assessed against their unit prior to a transfer of such unit but payable subsequent thereto, provided that the owner to which the unit is transferred shall be liable to pay such common expenses,

Default in Payment of Assessment:

- a. Arrears of any payments owing to the Corporation required to be made under the provisions of this Article XI and the Act shall bear interest at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum, and shall be compounded monthly until paid.
- b. Each owner who defaults in their obligation to contribute to the Corporation

under the provisions of Article XI shall reimburse the Corporation for administration charges for non-negotiable cheques, legal expenses and other late payment charges incurred by the Corporation for each month the owner is in default, and such charges will be in addition to the interest payable pursuant to this By-law and shall also be deemed to constitute a reasonable charge incurred by the Corporation in collecting any unpaid common expenses within the meaning of the Act.

If the Corporation registers a Notice of Lien as provided by the Act upon an owner defaulting in their obligation to contribute to the Corporation towards the common expenses under this Article XI and the Act, the owner shall reimburse the Corporation for all costs, legal fees, (determined on the basis of costs as between a solicitor and its own client), expenses and disbursements, (and all applicable sales taxes) incurred by the Corporation in preparing and registering the Notice of Lien and a Discharge thereof. All payments upon account shall be applied firstly to interest; secondly, to late payment charges; thirdly, to costs, legal fees, expenses and disbursements incurred by the Corporation in registering the Notice of Lien and a Discharge thereof (which shall themselves bear interest at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum compounded monthly until paid); and fourthly, to the most aged arrears of payments required to be made under the provisions of this Article XI and the Act. In addition to any remedies or liens provided by the Act, if any owner is in default in payment of any assessment levied, or payment of its common element expenses for a period of ten (10) days, the Corporation may institute such legal action and proceedings as it deems proper or advisable to enforce collection thereof, and there shall be added to any amount found due all costs of such action including costs as between a solicitor and its own client (which shall themselves bear interest at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum compounded monthly until paid) expenses and disbursements (including all applicable sales taxes).

ARTICLE XII DEFAULT

- Notice of Unpaid Common Expenses: The Corporation whenever so requested in writing by an owner or mortgagee entered on the register shall promptly report any unpaid common expenses, due from, or any other default by, such owner, and any common expenses assessed or other money claimed by the Corporation against such owner.
- Notice of Default: The Corporation shall deliver a "Notice Of Lien To Owner" in the form prescribed by the Act at least ten, (10) days prior to registering a lien against the owner's unit for unpaid common expenses.

ARTICLE XIII DAMAGE

- 1. Procedure Where Damage Occurs: Subject to Section 123 of the Act, where the Board has determined that there has been substantial damage to the buildings for which the cost of repair is estimated to equal or exceed 25% of the replacement cost of all of the buildings and structures located on the property, the Board shall give notice of such determination within ten (10) days of the determination to all owners and mortgagees entered on the register kept for such purpose, with such notice to the mortgagees to be sent by registered mail. Such notice may be combined with notice to the owners of a meeting called for the purpose of voting for repair, or termination of the Corporation.
- Plans and Specifications: A complete set of all the original architectural and structural plans and specifications for the buildings, including plans and specifications for any additions, alterations or improvements from time to time made to the common elements or to any unit with the prior consent in writing of the Board, shall be maintained in the office of the Corporation at all times, or at such other place as the Board shall from time to time determine by resolution, for the use of the Corporation in rebuilding or repairing any damage to the building, and for the use of any owner.

ARTICLE XIV INDEMNIFICATION

Each owner shall indemnify and save harmless the Corporation from and against any loss, costs (including legal costs, disbursements and applicable sales taxes all determined on a solicitor and his/her client basis) damage, injury or liability whatsoever which the Corporation may suffer or incur resulting from or caused by an act or omission or breach of the Act, this Declaration, the By-Laws or Rules, of such owner, the owner's family or any member thereof, any tenant or other resident of the unit or any guests, invitees or licensees of such owner or resident to or with respect to the common elements and/or all other units, except for any loss, costs, damages, injury or liability caused by an insured (as defined in any policy or policies of insurance) and insured against by the Corporation but subject to Article XVIII of this By-law.

Owners shall be jointly and severally responsible for any such losses, costs, damages, etc., caused by any tenant or other resident of their unit. All payments pursuant to this clause are deemed to be additional contributions toward the common expenses and recoverable in the same manner as set out in Article XI herein.

ARTICLE XV RESERVE FUND

- The corporation shall establish and maintain one or more reserve funds and shall collect from the owners, as part of their contribution towards common expenses, amounts that, calculated on the basis of expected repair and replacement costs and life expectancy of things comprising the common elements and the assets of the Corporation, are reasonably expected to provide sufficient funds for major repair and replacement of common elements and assets of the Corporation, but in no event shall contributions to the reserve fund or funds be less than ten percent (10%) of the amount required for contributions to the common expenses exclusive of the reserve fund.
- No part of a reserve fund shall be used except for the purposes for which the fund was established.
- The amount of a reserve fund shall constitute an asset of the Corporation and shall not be distributed to any owner except on termination of the Corporation.
- Interest earned on monies held in a reserve fund shall itself form part of the reserve fund.
- The cost of obtaining any class of reserve fund study prescribed by the Act may be paid from the reserve fund itself at the discretion of the Board.
- 6. Money in a reserve fund may be invested in the manner described in Article V, paragraph 2 (e) of this By-law, but only after the Corporation has developed an Investment Plan based upon the anticipated cash requirements of the Corporation's reserve fund as set out in the most recent reserve fund study.

ARTICLE XVI AUDITORS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- The owners shall at each annual meeting appoint one or more auditors to hold
 office until the close of the next annual meeting and, if an appointment is not so
 made, the auditor in office continues in office until a successor is appointed.
- 2. The financial statement prepared by the auditor in accordance with the Act shall be approved by the Board and the approval shall be evidenced by the signature at the foot of the balance sheet by two of the Directors duly authorized to sign, and the auditors' report prepared in accordance with the Act shall be attached to or accompany the financial statement.
- 3. The Corporation shall, at least fifteen (15) days or more before the date of the

annual meeting of owners, send by prepaid mail or deliver to each owner and mortgagee at their latest address entered on the register of the Corporation a copy of the financial statement and a copy of the auditors' report.

ARTICLE XVII GENERAL MATTERS AND ADMINISTRATION

Rights of Entry

a. The Corporation or any insurer of the property or any part thereof, their respective agents, or any other person authorized by the Board, shall be entitled to enter any unit at all reasonable times and upon giving reasonable notice to perform the objects and duties of the Corporation, and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, for the purpose of making inspections, adjusting losses, making repairs, correcting any condition which violates the provisions of any insurance policy or policies, and remedying any condition

which might result in damage to the property and/or is a violation of the Act or the Declaration, By-Laws or Rules of the Corporation.

- b. In case of an emergency, an agent of the Corporation may enter a unit at any time and without notice for the purpose of repairing the unit, common elements, or for the purpose of correcting any condition which might result in damage or loss to the property. The Corporation or anyone authorized by it may determine whether an emergency exists.
- c. if an owner shall not be personally present to grant entry to their unit, the Corporation, or its agents, may enter upon such unit without rendering it, or them, liable to any claim or cause of action for damages by reason thereof provided that they exercise reasonable care.
- d. The rights and authority hereby reserved to the Corporation, its agents, or any insurer or its agents, do not impose any responsibility or liability whatever for the care or supervision of any unit except as specifically provided in the Declaration or the By-laws.
- 2. Units Subject to Declaration, By-Laws, and Rules of the Corporation: All present and future owners, tenants and residents of units, their families, guests, invitees or licensees, shall be subject to and shall comply with the provisions of the Act, the Declaration, the By-laws, and the Rules of the Corporation. The acceptance of a deed or transfer, or the entering into of a lease, or the entering into occupancy of any unit, shall constitute an agreement that the provisions of the Act, the Declaration, the By-laws, and the Rules, as they may be amended from time to time, are accepted and ratified by such owner, tenant or resident, and all of such provisions shall be deemed and taken to be covenants running with the unit and shall bind any person having, at any time, any interest or estate in such unit as though such provisions were recited and stipulated in full in each and every such deed or transfer or lease or occupancy agreement.

ARTICLE XVIII INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLES

- If any damage should occur to a unit or part of it and the damage was not caused by the Corporation or any agent or employee of it, and such damage was of a type that is insured against by the Corporation, the unit owner shall be responsible for reimbursing the Corporation for the lesser of the cost of repairing the damage and the deductible limit of the Corporation's insurance policy and, in accordance with the Act, such amounts shall be added to the common expenses payable for the owner's unit. This provision shall apply regardless of how the damage occurred or who or what may have caused it.
- 2. If any damage should occur to the common elements or part of them and an owner, other occupant of the unit or a guest of an owner or and occupant was responsible for such damage and such damage was of a type that is insured against by the Corporation, the unit owner shall be responsible for reimbursing the Corporation for the lesser of the cost of repairing the damage and the deductible limit of the Corporation's insurance policy. This provision shall apply regardless of how the damage occurred or who or what may have caused it.

ARTICLE XIX PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENTS

- The Corporation is authorized, but is not obligated to, object to assessments made under the Assessment Act on behalf of the owners.
- 2. Prior to making an objection the Corporation must give at least ten, (10) days prior written notice to the owners of its intent to object and what the objections are provided the Corporation may give such shorter notice as the Board deems necessary in the event that an objection limitation period would be missed by reason of giving ten (10) days notice.
- On written notice to the Board given before the hearing of a complaint under section 40 of the Assessment Act, an owner may withdraw a complaint that the corporation has made on the owner's behalf.
- 4. All costs associated with making the objections, including, without being limited to, the cost of any consultants, experts or others hired by the Corporation to assist or represent it in making the objections shall be paid for from the common expenses.
- 5. The Corporation shall not be liable to any owner for an alteration in the assessment of a unit or for any other matter relating to the complaint including, without being limited to, the failure to make an objection within the required time period.

ARTICLE XX MEDIATION/ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

- in accordance with section 56 (1) (o), of the Act, the procedures contained in this Article XX shall apply to:
 - disagreements arising between the Corporation and an owner in respect to the declaration, the by-laws and the rules of the Corporation pursuant to section 132 (4), of the Act;
 - a dispute by an owner as to the fair market value of the property or part of the common elements that has been sold by the Corporation, pursuant to section 125, of the Act; and
 - c. to those agreements listed in section 132 (2) and (3), of the Act subject to any specific contractual provisions contained in such agreements relating to the use of mediation or arbitration to resolve disputes. Should there be a
 - conflict between such contractual provisions and the provisions contained this Article XX , the contractual provisions shall take precedence.
- 2. Before requiring a disagreement to be submitted to mediation a person entitled to utilize the mediation process, (the "requesting party") shall notify, in writing, the other party to the dispute (the "responding party") and shall disclose in such notification, in reasonably sufficient detail, the nature of the dispute and the requesting party's suggestions for resolving it. The responding party shall have ten (10) days from receipt of such notification to respond, in writing, to the requesting party's concerns. If the requesting party is not satisfied with the response, the requesting party may either, continue efforts to resolve the dispute or, submit a notice of request for mediation in accordance with the provisions contained in this Article XX. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either of the requesting party and the responding party may disregard the requirement for pre-mediation notice or a response to it, if they have a genuine concern that to delay commencement of the mediation process will prejudice their position or that of others who may have some interest in the dispute, in some real and measurable fashion.
- 3. Any party to a dispute that is governed by this Article XX provision who wishes to commence the mediation process must send a notice of request to mediate to the other party(s) to the dispute. The notice need not be in any specific form but must:
 - be typewritten or printed legibly;
 - b. clearly identify the matter in dispute;
 - set out, in reasonably sufficient detail, the reasons why the matter is being disputed and the disputing party's suggestions as to resolving the matter, (this condition may be satisfied by attaching a copy of the pre-mediation notice, if any);
 - d. include the following statement: "....., (name of party requesting

- mediation) hereby requires that the disagreement described in this notice be submitted to mediation in accordance with section 132 (4) of *The Condominium Act, 1998.*"
- e. include with it three, (3) signed copies of an Agreement to Mediate in the Corporation's form as may be amended from time to time at the discretion of the Board copies of which shall be made available by the Corporation promptly upon request;
- f. the names of three, (3) independent persons qualified to provide mediation services in accordance with this Article XX and their addresses and telephone numbers, any of which the requesting party agrees to accept as the mediator of the disagreement; and
- g. be dated and signed by the requesting party.
- Any notices to be delivered pursuant to this Article XX shall be delivered in accordance with Article X of this by-law.
- The limitation period for choosing a mediator established in the Act shall commence running as of the date a notice of request to mediate is delivered to the responding party.
- 6. Upon receipt of a notice of request to mediate the responding party shall have ten (10) days to sign and return one copy of the Agreement to Mediate to the requesting party. If the responding party:
 - a. fails to return the Agreement to Mediate within the required time;
 - b. refuses to sign the Agreement to Mediate;
 - c. refuses to submit the disagreement to mediation; or
 - d. does nothing in response to the request to mediate.

they shall be deemed to have accepted the appointment of any one of the persons listed in the notice of request to mediate to act as the mediator with respect to the disagreement as chosen by the requesting party and, in the event that mediation takes place, to be bound by the mandatory provisions to be included in the Agreement to Mediate as listed in paragraph 9, of this Article XX.

If the parties agree to mediate but cannot agree to a mediator within ten, (10) days of receipt by the responding party of the notice of request for mediation, or a mediator has been agreed upon but is unable or unwilling to act and the parties cannot agree on a replacement, the mediator who was agreed upon shall select a new mediator or if no mediator was agreed upon then any of the parties may request one of the Arbitration and Mediation Institute of Ontario, or the Canadian Condominium Institute, (" the CCI") on a without personal liability basis, to recommend a mediator and the parties will be deemed to have agreed to accept that mediator for the mediation.

- 8. To be qualified to act as a mediator for a dispute governed by this Article XX, a person must belong to the Arbitration and Mediation Institute of Ontario and have a basic knowledge of condominium law and administration which may be evidenced by; their involvement with condominiums (such as having worked in a profession directly related to the condominium industry or served as a board member for a condominium); education, (such as having taken or taught one or more seminars/courses relating to condominium law and administration sponsored by the CCi); or experience, (such as having acted as a mediator in at least five (5) or more mediations involving condominium related disputes).
- 9. Any Agreement to Mediate utilized by the Corporation shall be reasonable, fair and drafted in a manner as to give equal treatment to all parties to it. The following are the mandatory statements or provisions that the Agreement to Mediate must always contain unless changed by by-law of the Corporation:
 - a. an explanation of the mediator's role as being a neutral facilitator to assist the parties in reaching their own settlement;
 - the mediator will not provide legal advice and that each party is advised to retain and consult with their owner lawyer to be properly counseled about their legal rights, interests and obligations;
 - c. that for the mediation to be successful open and honest communication is essential and accordingly all, written and oral communications, negotiations and settlements, including, but not limited to the pre-mediation notice, and the notice of request to mediate, that are made in the course of mediation will be treated as privileged settlement discussions and shall be confidential to the fullest extent provided by law unless the parties agree otherwise and in writing.
 - d. that the parties shall not demand the production of any records, notes, work product or other documents relating to the mediation from the mediator or call the mediator or anyone else associated with the mediation as a witness in any legal or administrative proceeding concerning the parties.
 - e. notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that the Agreement to Mediate, the record of settlement produced by the mediator in respect of the mediation and any written agreement made between the parties as a result of the mediation may be used in any subsequent proceeding involving the parties that arises by reason of a breach of any such agreement or settlement by one of the parties;
 - f. the parties or their representatives who actually participate in the mediation will have express authority to negotiate and settle the disagreement themselves;
 - g. the parties will disclose and produce all relevant and pertinent information and documents that relate to the disagreement to be mediated to each other and to the mediator;

- h. when a settlement is reached between the parties the mediator will prepare a written record of the settlement which shall form part of the agreement or matter that was the subject of the mediation;
- that should a party wish to withdraw from the mediation after it has commenced the withdrawing party must discuss the withdrawal with the mediator before doing so;
- j. should the mediator determine that is not possible to resolve the matter through mediation, with or without the agreement of the parties, he or she shall issue a notice to the parties stating the mediation has failed in a timely fashion and not more than five (5) days after the mediator has reached this decision and neither party shall be obligated to continue with the mediation unless all the parties agree in writing;
- k. each party shall pay the fees and expenses relating to the mediation that the settlement agreement reached between them specifies if a settlement is obtained or that the mediator specifies in the notice stating that the mediation has failed;
- i. each party shall pay in advance such deposits as the mediator shall reasonably require towards the costs of the mediation and for the purposes of this clause, "reasonable costs" shall include one-half of the mediator's total estimated costs for the mediation.
- m. the parties will execute such other agreements or consents as the mediator may reasonably require with respect to the mediation;
- the mediation shall take place at such location as the mediator may choose provided that it is located within the City or Town that the Corporation is located within;
- o. the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the parties; and
- p. an agreement that the parties jointly and severally agree to indemnify and save hamiless the mediator for all liability, costs, claims and proceedings howsoever arising under the Agreement to Mediate or as a result of the conduct of the mediation and its consequences, provided that the mediator has carried out his or her duties honestly and in good faith;
- q. the agreement will be governed by the laws of the province of Ontario.
- r. the agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties and the mediator, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.
- 10. In accordance with section 132 (1), if the mediator determines that the mediation will not take place or has failed, the matter under dispute shall be submitted to arbitration in accordance with the Arbitrations Act 1991. If the matter is submitted to arbitration, the parties agree that only one arbitrator shall be appointed. If they cannot agree on arbitration within ten (10) days the arbitrator shall be chosen in the same manner as set out in paragraph 7 herein.
- Nothing in this Article XX shall preclude the Corporation, an owner or other party

from exercising any of the rights or remedies afforded to them under the Act or at law.

ARTICLE XXI NON-RESIDENTS

- An owner who has leased, rented or otherwise allowed someone to occupy his or her unit and as a result does not reside on a regular basis in the unit is prohibited from using any of the common elements except:
 - a. as a guest of another unit owner;
 - b. at the invitation of the Board;
 - c. to the extent necessary to inspect the owner's unit and the exclusive use areas allocated to and for carrying out such maintenance, repairs or replacement of the unit or common elements that the owner may be responsible for; and
 - d. is reasonably necessary to collect rents, show the unit to prospective buyers/tenants and to otherwise carry out his or her responsibilities as an absentee owner.
- An owner who rents or leases his or unit must comply with section 83 of the Act which, among other matters, requires the owner to:
 - a. notify the Corporation that the unit has been leased, within thirty, (30) days of entering into lease or renewal;
 - b. provide the Corporation with the names of the lessees (tenants);
 - c. provide the Corporation with the owner's address;
 - d. provide to the Corporation a copy of a Summary of Lease Or Renewal in the form prescribed by the regulations to the Act, (Form 5, Ontario Regulation 49/01); and
 - e. provide the lessee with a copy of the declaration, by-laws and rules of the Corporation.
 - f. notify the Corporation immediately upon the lease for the unit being terminated and not renewed.

ARTICLE XXII MISCELLANEOUS

- Invalidity: The invalidity of any part of this By-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance thereof.
- 2. Gender: The use of the masculine or feminine gender in this By-law shall be deemed to include masculine or feminine respectively and neuter genders and the use of the singular shall be deemed to include plural wherever the context so

- 3. <u>Waiver</u>: No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this By-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.
- Headings: The headings in the body of this By-law form no part thereof but shall be deemed to be inserted for convenience of reference only.
- 5. <u>Alterations</u>: This By-law, or any part thereof, may be varied, altered or repealed by a by-law passed in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the Declaration.

The foregoing By-law No. 1 is hereby passed by the Directors of the Corporation pursuant to *The Condominium Act 1998* as evidenced by the respective signatures hereto a majority of all of the Directors.

DATED this

day of September, 2006.

Enrico Lisi

Frank DiGirolamo

Froilio Carinci

The undersigned, which owns 100% of the units, hereby confirms, pursuant to the provisions of *The Condominium Act 1998*, the foregoing By-law No. 1 of the By-laws of the said Corporation signed by all the Directors of the said Corporation as a By-law thereof pursuant to the provisions of the said Condominium Act on the $\int \int \int day \, dx \, dx$ day of September, 2006.

DATED the _____ of September, 2006.

ANDIEL HOMES INC.

Énrico Lisi, President

"I have authority to bind the Corporation."

Onbarto	Document	rallon Reform Act			•	L
	(1) Registry	Land Titles X	2) Page 1 of	pages	•	
	(3) Property Identifier(s)	Block Proj 29660 - 0061 (LT) to	deny 29660-0535 (LT	/ See	ditional: • •edule	
Number YR 884734 CERTIFICATE OF RECEIF	(4) Nature of Doc BY-LAW NO.	ument . 2 (Condominium Act,	1998)	, , , ,		····<
	IEL Constitutoration					
SEP Z 1 2006 <u>/2</u> :			Dollars \$			
SEP 2 1 2006 / SEP 2	ter York Region S	common elements comp Standard Condominiun an, Regional Municipal	Corporation No. 1	included 069.	l in	
New Property Identifiers						
Addit See Sche	dule 🔲					
Executions Addit See Sche	dule (7) This Document Contains:	(a)Redescription (New Easement Plan/Sketch	b) Schedule for: Add Description Par	fitional ties	Othe	
(8) This Document provides as follows:			· '	<u> </u>		
See schedule attached						
see seneddie attached	-					
(9) This Document relates to instrument number	er(s)		Cont	inued on Sa	chedul	e 🔲
(10) Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest) Name(s)		Signature(s)			·	<
YORK REGION STANDARD CONICORPORATION NO. 1869	YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1869			Date of	Signat	< ure
		Per: Enrico Lisi, President		Date of Y 2006		D _C C
·			d the Corporation."	2006	₩.	D _C C
		Enrico Lisi, President	d the Corporation."	2006	₩.	D _C C
(11) Address		Enrico Lisi, President		2006	₩.	D _C C
for Service		Enrico Lisi, President	d the Corporation."	2006	₩.	D _C C
		Enrico Lisi, President		2006	09 Signat	ľ ኖ
for Service (12) Party(les) (Set out Status or Interest)		Enrico Lasi, President "I have authority to bin		2006 Date of	09 Signat	₽9°
for Service (12) Party(les) (Set out Status or Interest)		Enrico Lasi, President "I have authority to bin		2006 Date of	09 Signat	₽9°
for Service (12) Party(les) (Set out Status or Interest)		Enrico Lasi, President "I have authority to bin		2006 Date of	09 Signat	₽9°
for Service (12) Party(les) (Set out Status or Interest)		Enrico Lasi, President "I have authority to bin		2006 Date of	09 Signat	₽9°
for Service (12) Party(les) (Set out Status or Interest) Name(s) (13) Address for Service		Enrico Lasi, President "I have authority to bin Signature(s)		Y 2006	09 Signat	₽9°
for Service (12) Party(les) (Set out Status or Interest) Name(s) (13) Address	(15) Document Prepared	Enrico Lasi, President "I have authority to bin Signature(s)	Fees a Registration Fee	2006 Date of	09 Signat	₽9°
for Service (12) Party(les) (Set out Status or Interest) Name(s) (13) Address for Service	(15) Document Prepared B. Chris Langlotz Simpson Wigle LLF	Enrico Lasi, President "I have authority to bin Signature(s)	Fees a Registration Fee	Y 2006	09 Signat	₽9°
for Service (12) Party(les) (Set out Status or Interest) Name(s) (13) Address for Service (14) Municipal Address of Property	(15) Document Prepared B. Chris Langlotz	Enrico Lasi, President "I have authority to bin Signature(s)		Y 2006	09 Signat	₽9°

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069

TERRACES ON THE GREEN

BY-LAW NO. 2

CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1998

CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT OF A BY-LAW (under subsection 56 (9) of the Condominium Act, 1998)

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069 (known as the "Corporation") certifies that:

- a. The copy of By-law Number 2, attached as schedule A, is a true copy of the By-law.
- b. The By-law was made in accordance with the Condominium Act 1998.
- The owners of a majority of the units of the Corporation have voted in favour of confirming the By-law.

Dated this day of September, 2006.

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069

Envico Lisi, President:

Frank Di Girolamo, Secretary:

"We have authority to bind the Corporation."

SCHEDULE "A"

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069

TERRACES ON THE GREEN

BY-LAW NO. 2

CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1998

STANDARD CONDOMINIUM UNIT DEFINITION

WHEREAS:

- The Condominium Act, 1998 (the "Act") requires that the determination of what constitutes an "improvement" to a condominium unit shall be determined by reference to a standard unit definition;
- The Corporation is responsible to insure the condominium units exclusive of the "improvements" to the units;
- Each unit owner is responsible to insure the improvements to his or her unit;
- 4) Any component of a unit over and above the defined "standard unit" is considered to be an "improvement" to the unit.

NOW THEREFORE be it enacted as a By-Law of YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069 (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") as follows:

- It is understood that the following description of the standard "unit" does not include the common elements of the Corporation as described in its Declaration and Description which shall be insured by the Corporation
- The standard unit shall be defined as all of those components of the unit contained within its boundaries, as defined in the Declaration and Description of the Corporation, and shall include:
 - a. the ceilings completed to the concrete ceiling slab or drywall (any reference to drywall in this by-law shall mean drywall that is 5/8" in thickness or such greater thickness as the Building Code may require) with a blown flock finish or painted finish, including taping, sanding, one coat of primer paint and one coat of finishing paint;
 - Builder's Standard floor coverings including ceramic floors at entrance halls, kitchens, bathrooms and laundry rooms, with good quality broadloom in all other rooms with Builder's Standard underpad;
 - all installations with respect to the provision of water, drainage and sewage services for the unit;
 - all installations with respect to the provision of heat, air conditioning and ventilation including grates and/or other coverings;
 - e. all installations with respect to the provision of electricity including outlets and outlet covers and light fixtures, telephone cable outlets in at least one bedroom, kitchen and living room, and cable television outlets in at least bedroom and living room, all requisite smoke detectors as required by applicable regulation, one standard stove electrical outlet; rough in for dishwasher; rough in for gas fireplace; rough in for washer and dryer;

- f. interior partitions and walls completed to the drywall, including taping, sanding, one coat of primer paint and one coat of finishing paint;
- g. all interior doors, door trim, builder's mid-quality door hardware, floor trim, and internal window trim, all trim shall be of builder's mid quality and shall be finished with one coat of primer paint and one coat of finishing paint);
- partitions and walls between units and common elements, including, where applicable, insulation and vapor barrier, completed to the drywall, (including taping, sanding, one coat of primer paint and one coat of finishing paint);
- Builder's Standard grade kitchen cabinets, counter tops, range hood and bathroom and powder room cabinets, counter tops and bathroom fixtures and a luxury one piece acrylic tub/shower units;
- j. such other components of the unit which the declarant of the condominium would have been required to construct by the then current regulations (as at the time of the damage or repair) in order to achieve registration of the condominium plan; and
- all interior structural components, finishes, fixtures, mechanical systems, which shall be constructed to Builder's Standard grade.
- 3. Anything within the boundaries of a unit which is not described in the definition of a standard unit set out above shall be considered an improvement to the unit. For greater certainty and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the standard unit shall not include:
 - all up-graded floor coverings other than as described above (including upgraded underpad);
 - wall coverings other than paint as described above, including paneling, other wood treatments, tiles, textured paint and/or wall paper;
 - window coverings, drapery hardware, or blinds;
 - d. any addition, alteration, or improvement to the common elements made by an owner either before or after the date of proclamation of the Act and regardless of whether an agreement under section 98, of the Act has or has not been entered into between the Owner and the Corporation for such addition, alteration or improvement.
- 4. For clarification, the consequence of such definition of "standard unit" is to cause all components of each unit that is not specifically stated to be part of the standard unit to be classified considered and defined as an "improvement" thereby making the owner(s) of such unit completely responsible for all insurance and maintenance relating thereto and relieving the Corporation from being required to provide or maintain any insurance on account thereof.
- 5. If any component of the standard unit must be "upgraded" or changed in order to comply with any applicable governmental by-law, regulation or code while being repaired or replaced on account of insurable damage or destruction the said upgrade or change shall be considered part of the standard unit despite not being clearly defined herein as being part of the standard unit.
- Nothing in this By-Law shall relieve an owner of any obligation to maintain, repair and, when necessary, replace any component of his or her unit as may be set out in the Act and the Corporation's Declaration, By-laws and Rules;
- In the event that a fixture or construction feature is no longer available and there is a
 dispute as to what then may constitute a "Builder's Standard" a comparison shall be

had to similar products being offered by builders of new construction at the time of damage of similar value to the unit in which or to which the damage has occurred. If there is a disagreement as to what constitutes a "Builder's Standard", the issue shall be exclusively and conclusively determined by the insurance adjuster(s) retained by and acting on behalf of the condominium's insurer and the decision of such adjuster(s) shall be binding on the condominium and all its owners and mortgages.

The foregoing By-law is hereby passed by the Directors of the Corporation pursuant to *The Condominium Act 1998* as evidenced by the respective signatures hereto of a majority of all of the Directors.

DATED this

19

day of September, 2006.

Ænrico Lisi, President

Frank Di Girolamo, Secretary

Emilio Carinci, Director

(seal)

·				

• • •	2 Sept of	ario	Document		.compe commerciation ()	··, ···	D	
			(1) Registry		(2) Page 1 of	pages		
			(3) Property Identifier(s)	Block Pro 29600-0001 (LT) to 290	perty 500-0525 (LT)	See	litional: edule	
Number YR 884743 CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT SEP Z 1 2006 12: 49 YORKREGION James Sep 2 2006 12: 40 YORKREGION JAMES SEP		(4) Nature of Doce BY-LAW NO.	(4) Nature of Document BY-LAW NO. 3 (Condominium Act, 1998)					
		_	(5) Consideration					
	SEP	z 1 2006 12:49			Dollars \$			
ì	YORKREGION No. 88 NEWMARKET	ad Junap	(6) Description All units and e York Region S	ommon elements com Standard Condominiu	prising the property n Corporation No. 1	included 069.	l in	
	-							
ll '	roperty Identifiers							
		Additional: See Schedule						
Execu	itions		· .		<u> </u>			
		Addillonel: See Schedule	(7) This Document Contains:	(a)Redescription New Easement Plan/Sketch		ditional ties	Other X	
) This O	ocument provide:	s as follows:						
šee sch	edule attached	I	+ 4		•			
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			14				
			* .				•	
			•					
					-			
	Document relates	to instrument number(s)			Con	tinued on S	chedule	
Nam	e(s)			Signature(s)	2	Date of Y	Signature M D	
YORK	REGION ST.	ANDARD CONDOM	UNIUM	Per: Timothy Bullock		2006	09/6	
	olicitors	, 100 <i>7</i>	~~~~~		oind the Gornoration	ļ		
				, mars additionly to	sind the corporation			
	***************************************	***************************************		***************************************		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
15) Addr		. *************************************				<u> </u>	<u>. </u>	
	ervice y(ies) (Set out Sta		· .					
Nam Nam		ius of interesti		Signature(s)		Date of	Signature M D	
					,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			
	***************************************	***************************************				1	† 	
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••			**************************************			<u> </u>	 -	
13) Add	raca				<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
for 8	Service	-				lee .		
(14) M un	ilcipal Address of	, ,	(15) Document Prepare	d by:	Registration Fee	and Tax		
		i r	3. Chris Langlotz		N			
multint	ie			P				
multipl	le	įs	Simpson Wigle LL Suite 400	P	<u>CE USE</u>			
multipl	ie ·	S S 2	Simpson Wigle LL Suite 400 A King Street Wes	st	OFFICE USE			
multipl	le	S S 2 I	Simpson Wigle LL Suite 400	st	Total			

BY-LAW NO. 3

CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1998

CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT OF A BY-LAW (under subsection 56 (9) of the Condominium Act, 1998)

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1069, (known as the "Corporation") certifies that:

- 1. The copy of By-law Number 3, attached as schedule A, is a true copy of the By-law.
- 2. The By-law was made in accordance with the Condominium Act 1998.
- 3. The owners of a majority of the units of the Corporation have voted in favour of confirming the By-law.

Dated this 19 day of SEPEMB IN 2006.

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1089

President:

i iesidetit

Secretar

Per:

Per:

We have authority to bind the Corporation.

SCHEDULE "A"

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1069

BY-LAW NO. 3

WHEREAS York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1069, (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") is required to maintain and repair the common elements pursuant to sections 89 and 90 of the Condominium Act 1998; (the "Act");

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Declaration of the Corporation, the Corporation is obligated to acquire ownership of the heating and ventilation and air-conditioning equipment, ("HVAC") servicing the common element areas and the units, save and except the HVAC equipment servicing Unit 23, Level 4;

AND WHEREAS it has been determined that it is in the best interests of the Corporation and in accordance with the Declaration, to borrow the funds necessary to acquire the HVAC equipment;

AND WHEREAS the Condominium Act 1998, (the "Act") requires at section 56 (3), that a by-law be approved by the owners to permit the Corporation to borrow funds;

BE IT ENACTED as a By-Law of the Corporation as follows:

- The Corporation be and it is hereby authorized to borrow up to the sum of FOUR HUNDRED AND FIFTY-ONE THOUSAND AND SEVENTY DOLLARS AND NINETY-SIX CENTS, (\$451,070.96), from MORRISON FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, (the "Lender") upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may, at their discretion, determine.
- 2. The Corporation be and is hereby authorized to enter into, and any officer or director of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Lender for and on behalf of the Corporation, such loan agreement, (the "Loan") as may be required to obtain the Loan from the Lender and approved of by the Board of Directors, with such additions, deletions and amendments as such officer or director executing such agreement(s) may approve, execution as aforesaid to be conclusive evidence of this and such officers' approval.
- 3. The Corporation be and is hereby authorized to enter into, and any officer or director of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver for and on behalf of the Corporation, such agreements amending, extending, renewing or replacing the Loan as may be entered into by the Corporation with the Lender in respect of the Loan and approved of by the Board of Directors, from time to time, provided that no such agreement shall have the effect of increasing the principal balance outstanding under the Loan as of the date of its execution.
- 4. As general and continuing collateral security for the performance of all obligations, present and future, contingent or otherwise, of the Corporation owed to the Lender, the Corporation be and it is hereby authorized to provide such other security or to give such other undertakings as may be reasonably required by the Lender.
- 5. The Board of Directors of the Corporation are hereby authorized:
 - to execute (under corporate seal or otherwise) and deliver such loan agreements, security agreements, charges/mortgages, and such other

documentation as may be required, from time to time and to take such other steps as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to the foregoing;

- (b) delegate to such one or more of the officers and directors of the Corporation as may be designated by the Directors all or any of the powers conferred by the foregoing clauses of this By-Law to such extent and such manner as the directors shall determine at the time of such delegation; and
- (c) give indemnities to any director or other person who has undertaken or is about to undertake any liability on behalf of the Corporation.

The foregoing By-Law No. 3 is hereby passed by the Directors of the Corporation pursuant to the Act, and the by-laws of the Corporation as evidenced by the respective signatures hereto of a majority of the Directors.

DATED at love	, Ontario, this 17 day of SEPT, 2006.
	Jolling
President: Envico (Si	Scoretary: Frank Disirbamo
Director:	Director: Emilio larinci
	(SEAL)